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  [12.01 pm] 

 

SJH:   Good afternoon – just.  Now, Ms Scott, you are representing the 

Council? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   The Crown is represented, Ms Marks?  You are for? 

 10 

MS MARKS:   I am for the Ministry of Health. 

 

SJH:   Mr Wolfgram? 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   Dion Forbes, who is the managing director for Les Mills. 15 

 

SJH:   Could you stand, please? 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   My name is Blair Wolfgram, I am representing Dion 

Forbes, who is the managing director of Les Mills. 20 

 

SJH:   And is that also G&T Properties? 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   Yes. 

 25 

SJH:   Now, I have here a Ms Lemon? 

 

MS LEMON:   Penny Lemon. 

 

SJH:   Just wait, we will need the hand microphone.  You are for Orion along 30 

with Mr Miller? 

 

MS LEMON:   Yes, that is correct. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms McLeod, you are here for Transpower? 35 

 

MS MCLEOD:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Seaton you are for the Isaac Conservation and Wildlife 

Trust – Ms Seaton, sorry. 40 

 

MS SEATON:   Yes, yes. 

 

SJH:   We have representatives for the Crown and CCC listed here, but I 

presume they are not here separately from their legal representation? 45 
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MS CARRANCEJA:   Sir, if I can just clarify matters for the Crown.  As you 

have just been made aware, Ms Marks is appearing for the Ministry of 

Health and we also have, further in the back sir, Mr Matthew 

McCallum-Clark – he is making an appearance for New Zealand Police 

and the Ministry of Education. 5 

 

 Those three departments, sir, are listed as one of the 22 in the Crown 

submission, I am making appearances on behalf of everyone else.  So 

the situation would- - -  

 10 

SJH:   So, are they now going to be separately represented at these hearings, is 

that the position? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Yes, that is the position, sir.  The reason, sir, is that 

these become matters of specific interest to individual government 15 

departments and that- - -  

 

SJH:   No, I understand the reasons, I just wanted- - -  

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   And just to clarify, too, I am entering Agency 20 

appearances on behalf of some of those departments.  What is 

anticipated just for your information, sir, is that Mr Radich and I will 

be representing CERA and other government departments will end up 

having separate representation. 

 25 

SJH:   Understand. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   So we have got Mr McCallum-Clark – you are for the Police, the 30 

Ministry of Health and? 

 

MR McCALLUM-CLARK:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Any other? 35 

 

MR McCALLUM-CLARK:   No, just Ministry of Education and New Zealand 

Police. 

 

SJH:   Right.  Is there somebody from the Ministry of Health? 40 

 

MS MARKS:   Ms Marks. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, we have already got that, Ms Marks.  And Adele Bradburn? 

 45 

MS SCOTT:  Yes, sir, Ms Bradburn is a Council Officer- - -  
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SJH:   So she is just here as – right. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Observing, yes, thank you. 

 5 

SJH:   Okay, well if we go to the other submitters at the back who do we have?  

If you just stand up, take the microphone, give us your name and 

indicate. 

 

MR BUNDY:   Sir, it is David Bundy, representing ourselves. 10 

 

SJH:   Yes.   Mr Mora, you are representing your organisation once more? 

 

  [12.05 pm] 

 15 

MR MORA:  Yes, sir, the Riccarton/Wigram Community Board. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now, who else do we have the in the back that are? 

 

MR STOKES:   Colin Stokes, representing myself. 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR LOGAN:   Roland Logan, representing NG Logan Family Trust. 

 25 

SJH:   So that is a rock fall situation in Hammerton Lane? 

 

MR LOGAN:   No, this is to do with the stadium designation. 

 

SJH:   Okay.  Yes? 30 

 

MR JOLL:   Tim Joll representing- - - 

 

SJH:   Just wait for the microphone so it is in the- - -  

 35 

MR JOLL:   Sorry, sir.  Tim Joll representing Christchurch International 

Airport. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  All right, well the first thing we will hear Council on is the 

scope of the hearing. 40 

 

MR McCALLUM-BARKER:    Excuse me, sir. 

 

SJH:   Sorry. 

 45 
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MR McCALLUM-BARKER:   I am Matthew McCallum-Barker.  I am also 

representing Spark and Chorus. 

 

SJH:   Right, okay.  Now, have we got everybody?  All right, thank you.  Just 

for the record, Ms Dawson has something to put in. 5 

 

MS DAWSON:   For the record, I feel I have a close enough interest with 

Mr Logan’s submission that I would have a conflict of interest, and I 

will take no part in the deliberations in relation to his particular 

submission. 10 

 

SJH:   Or, I take it, other matters dealing with the same designation. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, with the same designation which is to do with the 

stadium designation. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS HURIA:   Just for transparency, I served on the Board of Transpower for 

four years around about 2000, so it was some time ago – but just in the 20 

interest of everything being very clear, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Right, well, Ms Scott if we go to you first around the scope 

of the hearing, and that will automatically segue into procedural 

matters. 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  The designations are set out in our proposal ten.  

There is also one Heritage Order in that Chapter as well – that is the 

Nurses Memorial Chapel.  The scope needs to extend to the 

designations as they are shown on the planning maps, and I do not have 30 

a full list of the planning maps, but they, I can get one for you if that 

would assist. 

 

SJH:   Yes, but there was one concern that has come up in other, I the earlier 

chapters that we have considered and we are about to hear next week, 35 

and it goes around definitions. 

 

 For example, there is a submission by Ms Theron (ph 3.02) said to be 

on designations under 3.1.0 which seems to be completely about 

definitions for example, and we are just concerned, that the view we 40 

have taken to date is that we will pick them up and identify the 

definitions as we deal with individual chapters. 

 

 There is a concern that that is a recipe for something to slip through the 

cracks and we did have one example in strategic directions where we 45 

listed the definitions relevant, and then we had a submission that some 
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additional definitions relating to guest rooms and resorts and such like, 

should be changed. 

 

 I am just wondering if we should be safe to put all definitions within 

the scope, or do we need to actually have a definitions hearing, because 5 

when you go through it there are a number of submitters whose only 

concern, or their submission is only on definitions in fact. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and I think a concern with the first option is that, is 

whether everyone who has submitted on a definition will be invited in 10 

part of this hearing- - - 

 

SJH:   To everything virtually, yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   And again we might end up with designation specific 15 

definitions, which I do not think is a desired outcome from the 

Council’s perspective. 

 

SJH:   No.  But do you have, well let’s not try to seek a solution today, I might 

get you just to think about that, that how we address the danger that 20 

some might fall through the cracks, I suspect that the work that is 

currently being done on the database will ease that concern 

considerably, and that should be in place next week and perhaps when 

we come to it you can address it, you might like to under hearing 

procedures, but it is also under scope whether or not we should, if that 25 

database is going to be available next week, we leave producing the list 

of definitions that will be within scope until that is available. 

 

  [12.10 pm] 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, we can consider that. 

 

SJH:   Does anyone else have anything to say on scope?  All right, thank you.  

The procedural matter arising, I think we have identified that one in 

particular.  Are there any other procedural issues that parties may have, 35 

just, that includes the lay-parties at the back.  Going to hearing 

procedures; we have now got a reasonably established hearing 

procedure – is the time limits for cross-examination that we have 

adopted to date satisfactory to everybody? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Is there anyone take a different view?  Do the lay submitters understand 45 

the procedures?  I mean Mr Mora, for example, has been at a number of 
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hearings and will be, but others I do not think have been here 

previously.  Would it assist if we outlined how the hearing takes place? 

 

MR……….:   Yes. 

 5 

SJH:   All right. 

 

MR LOGAN:   Excuse me, your Honour, I might be jumping- - - 

 

SJH:   Just wait for the microphone if you wouldn’t mind. 10 

 

MR LOGAN:   I might be jumping out of the procedure here, but I received in 

the mail today a letter which sort of, from CERA, which has changed to 

some degree my submission over the stadium procedure, but my 

submission I would like to still stand because the essence of my 15 

submission is still correct, but it, the, our property has been formally 

removed from the stadium designation with a great deal of others as per 

the- - -  

 

SJH:   Well I did raise this earlier with Ms Dawson, because I noticed the press 20 

release yesterday releasing a number of- - -  

 

MR LOGAN:   We only received this- - - 

 

SJH:   No, look, I understand, because we got the press release yesterday 25 

saying a number of properties and I did not have the opportunity to go 

in and list them, so you have been removed from the designation- - -  

 

MR LOGAN:   Correct, along with quite a lot of other properties. 

 30 

SJH:   Right, now, what concern remains for you then? 

 

MR LOGAN:   The main issue is still, because of the uncertainty, or extreme 

uncertainty of the stadium designation, it is going to hold back the 

recovery process of the surrounding area of the innovation precinct, 35 

and also of residential, inner city residential living, which I think, and 

CERA has said is paramount for the recovery of the CBD. 

 

SJH:   Does that mean you wish to make a submission that regardless of 

whether your property is or is not involved, you wish to submit that the 40 

designation for a stadium should be removed? 

 

MR LOGAN:   I see, at this present point in time, because of the uncertainty of 

the stadium, that there is no need to designate that land, the overall land 

for stadium, and if the Crown or the City Council wish to proceed with 45 
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the stadium at a later date, then they should redesignate the land at that 

time, not at the present point. 

 

SJH:   Well you are getting in to the merits of what you want to submit to us 

when we get to the substantive hearing now.  But, you have filed a 5 

submission, the land has been removed, but I will indicate that we will 

still hear your submission on that point when we get to the hearing.  

Okay? 

 

MR LOGAN:   Okay, thank you very much. 10 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, if I could just mention something; I have just had a 

word from a representative at CERA, perhaps Mr Logan might want to 

have a closer look at what was removed, my understanding is that part 

of his land is still in the designation, but it is something that you might 15 

want to check. 

 

MR LOGAN:   How do you mean, sorry? 

 

SJH:   Well the indication from CERA is that part of your land is still within 20 

the designation. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Just something you might wish to check. 

 

SJH:   Well, look, I do not want to get into the details of this, now.  The point 25 

remains that either you are still partly designated or not, but you can 

turn up at the hearing and make a submission that the whole of the 

stadium designation should be removed.  You are perfectly entitled to 

do that and we will come to this in a moment when we call evidence. 

 30 

 I will just go back to the procedure adopted at hearing, is that the 

proponent for Chapter ten is the Christchurch City Council.  They will 

open their case, and they will file evidence in support of it, and that 

evidence we will come to timetabling for it. 

 35 

  [12.15 pm] 

 

 Parties can apply for leave to cross-examine those witnesses.  The 

submitters all have the opportunity to call their own evidence – lay or 

expert, as the case may be.  All other parties other than that submitter 40 

may apply for leave to cross-examine on that. 

 

 We, because of the time constraint set out in the Order in Council, have 

adopted a process of limiting the time for presentation of evidence on 

the basis that it is filed and read by the Panel before the hearing starts. 45 
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 We have also limited the amount of time for cross-examination, which 

has worked successfully in the substantive hearing we have held to 

date.  Following the presentation of evidence and cross-examination, 

parties have the ability to make closing submissions – both on the 

evidence and on the law. 5 

 

 I think it is fair to say that we should distinguish between a submission 

and evidence – a submission is something that you wish to tell us about 

and give some reasons as to why your position is correct.  It does not 

have the standing of sworn evidence, which can be tested and cross-10 

examination and you may be questioned on. 

 

 So you need to distinguish between whether you wish simply to make a 

submission, which is along the lines of the document you have filed, 

which you may like to expand on or add to as the case may be, or 15 

whether you actually want to file formal evidence, which will allow 

people to apply to cross-examine. 

 

 Now, is there any queries about that process? 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, if I may just respond to your comment at the start of 

that summary, which is quite clearly generally in terms of the proposals 

that are notified by the Council, but in respect of this designations 

proposal, there is a process that is set out in the RMA and it is also 

included in the Order in Council, whereby the Council must, before it 25 

notifies the first set of Chapters, it has to go out to all of the requiring 

authorities who have an existing designation in the Operative City Plan, 

and it has to ask them whether they want to roll over their designation 

either with or without modification. 

 30 

SJH:   Sorry, I should have referred to that. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes.  So, it is- - - 

 

SJH:   So in the main I think, or all together, I think these are designations that 35 

currently exist. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, that is correct, there are no Council designations in the 

proposal. 

 40 

SJH:   No. 

 

MS SCOTT:   So it is actually the requiring authorities who have requested that 

their designations be rolled over, and they are in effect for this hearing 

the proponent of the designation. 45 

 



 Page 9 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 09.01.15 

 So it bring- - - 

 

SJH:   I understand that, but I would still be thinking the Council would start 

first. 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, well, it is not the Council – the Council cannot, or does not 

have, the evidence to be calling to support, for example- - - 

 

SJH:   Well if your submissions, well you simply submit that you support or do 

not support as the case may be, the designation sought given that they 10 

are in the operative plan, I would imagine you- - - 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, I understand- - -  

 

SJH:   Does the Council simply want to take a neutral stance on all of these? 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, but it is something that we wanted to raise with you today.  

The Council has made submissions on some of the designations, but 

not all of the designations.  Though the content of those submissions 

vary, but they are largely matters of minor details and errors that have 20 

been picked up in the designation schedule after notification of phase 

one. 

 

 So what- - - 

 25 

SJH:   They seem to me mainly matters that would be sorted out before we get 

to a hearing. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Absolutely, sir, yes.  So what normally happens under the RMA 

is that the Council has a recommendation role.  So, after the notice of 30 

requirement is heard, or the designation, the Council recommends to 

the requiring authority the decision that it is after.  The requiring 

authority then makes the decision, the final decision, on the 

designation. 

 35 

 Under the Order in Council that has changed and it is the hearings 

Panel that makes a draft decision, the Council is then directed to 

circulate that to the relevant parties and then the panel makes a final 

decision. 

 40 

SJH:   It is the same with a heritage order. 

 

MS SCOTT:   So we wanted to seek from you today some certainty about what 

you anticipated the Council’s role to be, and we do not see it as too far 

from the normal recommending role, but in terms of assisting the Panel 45 

where you might require assistance, and just as, I guess by way of 
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example, since notification a number of requiring authorities have been 

in discussions with the Council about the minor matters that you have 

raised, and certainly they are very minor matters that can just be sorted 

out. 

 5 

  [12.20 pm] 

 

 But if the Council is to be labelled as a proponent, it essentially would 

say – I mean the Council has lodged its submission, but it cannot go 

any further than that, and it would not be of any assistance to entire 10 

process - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I think what would be appropriate and what would be helpful if 

these minor matters that can be sorted out in advance, and some of 

them are mis-description of legal description of land and things like 15 

that, if that can be sorted out and filed and we have a clear view of 

what is being recommended by the Council. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Absolutely, and that - - - 

 20 

SJH:   Whether you then, because of your submission, wish to call evidence on 

that, you will have to determine and advise us, or are you able to advise 

us because normally we are asking for that today. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, I can advise you that the Council only intends to call 25 

planning evidence and it would be very limited. 

 

SJH:   Right. 

 

MS SCOTT:   In respect of working with the requiring authorities, that process 30 

is certainly underway and we can provide that information to you by 

way of perhaps joint memorandum of counsel with the requiring 

authority and any submitters on that specific designation. There is one 

designation where the Council might be able to assist you a little bit 

further, and that is the Airport’s designation. It has been raised in 35 

submissions that the Airport essentially seeks an extension of its 

boundary, and that is to do with the Reaper controls.  

 

 The Panel might be assisted by the Council in that it can provide you 

the existing rules, which are in the operative plan, and the draft rules 40 

that are currently being drafted to be notified in phase two.  

 

SJH:   Well, if I can put it this way, that is the only one that seems to be a 

change from existing designations that could be interpreted that way, 

because a number of the submitters are concerned that it is an 45 

expansion of. 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Now, whether that is actually the case - - - 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, and the Council has not submitted on that designation, sir. 

 

SJH:   No, I understand that, but I think what you are suggesting is useful. But 

presumably the planning witness you call will give an overview of 

everything? 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, and Ms Bradburn is here and she has been leading the 

discussions with the requiring authority, and it would be evidence from 

her in terms of some of the more minor, or some of the planning issues 

that might not be able to be resolved that she would address. 15 

 

SJH:   Well, I think it would be useful to us to hear that first, so we know 

exactly what we are dealing with. We will go back on that and let you 

follow the designated authority witnesses.  

 20 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Can we have an indication of what witnesses are going to be called by 

the various designating authorities, the numbers, you might not have 

the names at this stage. 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, I would just like to signal first of all that the 

numbers are very dependent on one submission, and it is a submitter 

that does not wish to be heard. 

 30 

SJH:   Which submitter number is it? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   The submitter number is number 21, it is a person 

named Mary Ellen Shackle, I have spare copies here if it is not 

available to be put up on screen, sir.  35 

 

  [12.25 pm] 

 

 Sir, it is available on screen, if hard copies will assist I do have spares, 

sir. So this is the submission, further up the submitter text proposal ten, 40 

so it is clearly on the designations proposals, sir. 

 

 She indicates that she is in opposition to the proposal and she specifies 

that she does not believe the designations of the central city of 

Christchurch should be rolled over, so that captures all of them, sir, that 45 

would include the courthouse, parts of the hospital, defence, it is 
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everything, sir, and this would be the only submission affecting many 

of these rolled over designations without quantification. 

 

SJH:   Presumably there is a CERA officer that can give evidence as to the 

need for these designations? 5 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That is correct, sir. But when we were informed about 

this submission, sir, and the reasons given in the submission and 

although she states that she does not wish to be heard, our inclination, 

sir, would be to call engineering evidence just to establish, sir, even at 10 

first instance, that rebuilding public facilities in the central city is not a 

matter that is - - - 

 

SJH:   It is also hard to know what is intended by dangerous. Is it dangerous 

because they are going to fall down or for some other reason? 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That is why I was thinking, sir, we may have to call a 

geotechnical engineer, plus a structural engineer just to establish that 

creating public buildings is a safe thing, sir.  

 20 

 Now this submitter does not wish to be heard, she has indicated that by 

ticking the no box at the bottom, sir. So what I would be seeking, sir, if 

the Panel would be minded, is to issue directions requesting 

Ms Shackle to confirm whether she wishes this submission to stand or 

be withdrawn, and if she does wish it to stand to actually specify which 25 

central city designations are of concern, because it is a lot of them, and 

I am not speaking just on behalf of CERA here, sir, but I know for 

example the Ministry of Defence has - - - 

 

SJH:   Just give us a moment. 30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  

 

SJH:   Look, we are of the view that given the status of the submission and its 

contents, it is ultimately a matter for the Crown, but we think it is 35 

sufficient that there are legal submissions on the importance of public 

buildings and designations, which again we will follow the normal 

practice of having brief opening legal submission, but more full in 

closing, and that a general witness covers the importance of public 

buildings to (a) the recovery, (b) the rebuild, (c) the public necessity of 40 

them. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Not only the building designations, all of these designations, and it is 45 

our view that that would be sufficient. 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir.   

 

 Would the Panel be minded, sir, to issue a direction in any event, sir, to 

specify which designations the submitter is actually concerned about or 5 

whether we leave it at all central city designations, sir? 

 

SJH:   Well, it is said to be all central city designations, so that is what you 

need to cover off. 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

 Just another matter, perhaps if the Panel is already aware of this I 

thought I would just draw your attention to it, in the Order, sir, in 

clause 14, there are two ways to deal with designations, sir. Clause 14 15 

subsection three; that is a circumstance, sir, where existing designations 

are rolled over without modification and there are no submissions on it, 

then it is not really an issue of discretion for the Panel, it is just a matter 

of the Panel must confirm the designation and must not alter or impose 

new conditions on it. So it is almost a deeming provision of sorts, sir. 20 

 

 But in the absence of that, and in the circumstance we are dealing with 

where we have a submission dealing with all central city designations, 

the Panel is required, and it is mandatory language, sir: “The Hearings 

Panel must, amongst other things, in relation to a designation or 25 

requirement for a designation, comply with section 171 of the RMA”, 

and that section, sir, does impose quite a lot of things that need to be 

established before you, sir. Hence that - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I think if we follow your suggestion it is more likely that we are 30 

going to have to go through that process anyway. 

 

  [12.30 pm] 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That is entirely my concern, sir, and so the reason for 35 

my direction essentially, your Honour, is that if she is directed or has 

the opportunity to specify which designations are actually of concern, 

then it might narrow the appeal somewhat.  Perhaps if I can speak on 

behalf of my learned friend here for Ministry of Health and also I will 

speak on behalf of Minister of Courts, sir - - - 40 

 

SJH:   Can we bring up the Order in Council, clause 14? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   So we are looking, sir, at two and three.   

 45 

SJH:   Yes, how many designations are there inside the central city? 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, I have only counted the ones affecting my - - -  

 

SJH:   Yes, I know, well, that is the - - -  

 5 

MR CARRANCEJA:   So there would be ten by CERA.  There is one by the 

Minister of Courts, one by the Minister of Defence, I believe there are 

at least two for the Ministry of Education, but we have not quite 

confirmed that, sir.  One by the Ministry of Health.   

 10 

SJH:   And there would be the Ministry of Police as well?  

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   The Ministry of Police, the main building, sir, is not a 

designation as I understand it. 

 15 

SJH:   Right, but the new one is not included in this? It is under construction? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, correct, sir.  If you are talking about the Justice 

precincts, sir, that is part of the - - - 

 20 

MS DAWSON:   The Courts. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   - - - the Courts.  The existing court designation, sir, 

though is - - - 

 25 

SJH:   Well, there is two; there is the existing court - - -  

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That is correct. 

 

SJH:   - - - and the new justice precinct?  30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.   

 

SJH:   Which encompasses a number of other organisations?  

 35 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Correct, sir. 

 

SJH:   But all within the one designation? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  So that is the number I have, sir, but I cannot 40 

speak on behalf of the requiring authorities or designating authorities, 

sir, what central city designation affected by the – it may be, sir, they 

might not be aware of this submission because it is not one that is - - -  
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SJH:   Well, it is so broad that – yes.  Ms Scott, can you help us out? Are there 

others without going through everybody within the central city, 

Transpower, et cetera?  

 

MS SCOTT:   I am just looking for some help down the back.  She is also 5 

looking – can we come back to you in a couple of minutes on that? 

 

SJH:   Yes, sure.  I think evidence of a broad level dealing with the safety 

allegation would enable us to meet the statutory requirements. 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.   

 

SJH:   That is the view of the Panel at this stage, that may change and you 

might like to give it further consideration.  But given the broadness of 

the submission, I think that would be sufficient.   15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  Well, perhaps what I will do, sir – initially 

you commenced by asking what number of witnesses we would be 

calling? 

 20 

SJH:   Well, we are not binding if you do this, because of this difficulty; so if 

you are saying one now and you later decide it is three, as long as you 

let us know as soon as possible.   

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.   25 

 

SJH:   Okay. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Would you like me to specify the witnesses? 

 30 

SJH:   Well, if you do have the name of the witnesses. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Okay, well, chances are, sir, this may reduce, but at the 

moment we have up to five witnesses.  Two of whom would be the 

engineers, sir, but I take your point, so we may end up reducing the 35 

number of witnesses.  So at the moment there are two engineers, sir, 

one planner and two other witnesses with various backgrounds 

regarding the ten designations that CERA is in charge of, sir.   

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 40 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, thank you, sir.   

 

  [12.35 pm] 

 45 

SJH:   Now how many witnesses are you proposing to call?  
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MS MARKS:   Sir, that may depend on one thing.  Technically, when the 

Council asked the Ministry of Health for notice as to whether they 

would like to roll over their designation, the Ministry of Health asked 

to roll over the designation with one minor change.  That change at the 5 

time was in the process of being amended in the current plan and that 

amendment has now taken place. 

 

 If the Panel is minded to make a direction that the designation is rolled 

over now without modification, the notified version is now identical to 10 

what is in the operative plan.  Then we potentially would not need any 

witnesses other than the general witnesses being called about central 

city safety. 

 

SJH:   So I am sorry, when you say “roll over”, this is roll over with the 15 

amendment that has gone into the operative plan?  

 

MS MARKS:   Yes, the only submission in relation to this is Ms Shackles (ph 

1.09).   

 20 

SJH:   The same answer, okay? 

 

MS MARKS:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, if I may just provide the witnesses as agency for 

other departments, sir? 

 

SJH:   Yes.   30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   For the New Zealand Transport Agency, two witnesses, 

one planner.  And one - - -  

 

SJH:   Two witnesses and a planner, or? 35 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sorry, two witnesses in total, sir. 

 

SJH:   Including a planner? 

 40 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Including a planner.  So one of them is a planner, sir.  

Sorry, I should have made that clear.  And the other is a witnesses 

giving evidence on operational matters for the various roads, sir.   
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 The next one, sir, is for the Minister of Defence, two witnesses again, 

sir, one being a planner and one providing evidence on the designated 

work subject of those designations. 

 

 For the Minister of Courts, sir, one witness, a planner.   5 

 

 And at this stage, sir, for the Ministry - - -  

 

SJH:   Well, I think because of that submission it is in dispute, I think I need to 

put on the record that I am Chairman of the Tenants’ Committee for 10 

that precinct.   

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.   

 

SJH:   So just that that is noted.  I do not think it creates any conflict in this 15 

regard. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir.  And the last one, sir, is the Minister of 

Social Development, two witnesses, sir. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   A planner and a witness regarding those designated 

works, sir.   

 25 

SJH:   That is fine.  So Mr McCullum-Clark? 

 

MR McCULLUM-CLARK:   Yes, sir, Ministry of Education will have one 

planning witness and one witness from the Ministry outlining the need 

for a designation.  New Zealand Police will have one witness.  In terms 30 

of – would you like me to speak on behalf of Spark and Chorus as to 

the witnesses as well?  

 

SJH:   Just to identify the numbers, yes.   

 35 

Mr McCULLUM-CLARK:   Just one witness for the two of those. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Lemon?  

 

MS LEMON:   Orion New Zealand will be calling one planning witness.   40 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Wolfgram, and just speak into the microphone, are you 

intending to call witnesses?  

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   Excuse me, sir, I am a layman.  I think I sat in the wrong 45 

place. 
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SJH:   No, that is all right. 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   But, yes, I guess from Les Mills perspective we are still 

in negotiations with CERA for the compulsory acquisition - - - 5 

 

SJH:   Well, assuming that does not happen and you do not get agreement – 

would you be calling evidence? 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   Well, I guess, it is - - -  10 

 

SJH:   If you want to reserve your position? 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   Yes, the need for witnesses will largely be determined by 

how the negotiations proceed with CERA, in terms of - - - 15 

 

SJH:   Yes, I understand that.  But assume your negotiations go nowhere, 

because you can withdraw the witnesses if you successfully conclude 

your negotiations.  It is just on the assumption that your position is the 

same as it is today.  How many witnesses would you want to call?  20 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   On that basis we would have three witnesses.   

 

SJH:   Three, thank you.  And that is covered both Les Mills and G&T 

Properties?  25 

 

  [12.40 pm] 

 

MR WOLFGRAM:   Exactly, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Yes.  Ms Seaton? 

 

MS SEATON:   Yes, sir.  I am in a slightly awkward position in that I cannot 

confirm witnesses at this stage until I have spoken with the client’s 

legal representation, who are all on holiday still. 35 

 

 We are trying to setup a teleconference for very early next week to do 

discuss it with them.  What the trust has indicated as that they definitely 

do wish to proceed to hearing.  If I had to stab a rough guess at the 

moment I would say there would be a submission that would be made 40 

but I can confirm just as soon as possible next week. 

 

SJH:   Well can we reserve your position by saying, I think in the strategic 

directions you called it “planning witness” and “a general witness”. 

 45 
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MS SEATON:   I appeared as a planning witness.  I do not know that we will 

be calling a planning witness in this instance but I will confirm as early 

as possible next week for you. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well we were reserve a position by saying, when, notification 5 

by Tuesday next week? 

 

MS SEATON:   I am aiming at Tuesday afternoon to try and speak with them, 

yes. 

 10 

SJH:   All right, well, we will make it Wednesday. 

 

MS SEATON:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   NZTA, you will cover that off for us?  Thank you.  Mr Mora, would you 15 

be calling evidence or making a submission? 

 

MR MORA:   I may be making a submission, sir, if necessary but I do not 

intend to call any expert witnesses. 

 20 

SJH:   Okay, thank you.  Mr Joll, Christchurch International Airport, I am sorry 

we should have? 

 

MR JOLL:   Yes, sir, proposing to call a maximum of three witnesses, a 

planning witness, a witness on airport operational matters and 25 

potentially further witness on airport functionality and role. 

 

SJH:   Ms McCloud? 

 

Ms McCloud:   Thank you, sir.  Transpower will be calling a planning witness 30 

and a company witness. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Bundy, do you wish to call evidence as well as make a 

submission? 

 35 

MR BUNDY:   No, sir, but we would like to allow for one witness please. 

 

SJH:   You would like to allow for one witness? 

 

MR BUNDY:   Thank you. 40 

 

SJH:   Will that be an expert witness or yourself? 

 

MR BUNDY:   A layperson. 

 45 

SJH:   Right, thank you.  Mr Stoaks? 
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MR STOAKS:   I will reserve the right to make a submission but no expert 

witness. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 5 

 

MR STOAKS:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Logan? 

 10 

MR LOGAN:   I will be making a submission myself and may be submitting 

an expert planner. 

 

SJH:   Submitting or calling one to give evidence. 

 15 

MR LOGAN:   One to give evidence but it is uncertain as to what the Crown’s 

experts are going to be at this stage, so I do not know. 

 

SJH:   Right, well, we will reserve that right for you.  Have we picked up 

everybody or have I missed somebody?  All right, thank you, so we 20 

have the indication of witnesses.  Are you able to bring up our standard 

procedure on the screen for us which would be helpful to aid people 

here? 

 

  [12.45 pm] 25 

 

 I am sorry I should have mentioned beforehand it would have been 

useful to have it in the system.  Just scroll up to the first page.  It is 

further down is it?  Here, we can go to 13, just keep scrolling down.  

Keep going.  It will be the one dealing with times.  It may not be in this 30 

document.   

 

 All right, without having it in front of us, the way this operates is that 

you file your evidence and we will have to fix a date for the filing of 

that evidence and then where you have filed evidence, those witnesses, 35 

it is pre-read.  There is an opportunity to speak and highlight that 

evidence for a period of, depending on the extent, but up to 20 minutes.  

Shorter briefs of evidence we would expect ten minutes and cross-

examination, our limitation again is 20 minutes.  So does anyone not 

accept the standard directions we have applied already to all the other 40 

hearings?  Are you comfortable with those? 

 

 You will see in the procedure there is mention there of shared witnesses 

so if there is potential between any of the Crown agencies for example 

or even lay submitters, which is unlikely, to share a witness, it reduces 45 

time and cost.  We have identified the experts.  There is no suggestion, 
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apart from the submission number 21, of the lack of clarity around the 

specification of relief. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No issues that we are raising, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Does anybody else have an issue with the specification of relief sort by 

submitters?  Five and six run together.  Is it thought that there would be 

value in mediation of all submitters that wish to be heard and will there 

be advantage in caucusing the experts because it would appear that 

apart from the expert witnesses that are likely to be called by Mr Bundy 10 

and Mr Logan, there is probably a consensus, is there not?  There is 

nothing really in dispute? 

 

MS SCOTT:   From the Council’s perspective, it would agree with that 

although I think there would be some value in getting the kind of 15 

advisory information to all of the parties sooner rather than later so that 

that can be taken into account. 

 

SJH:   That can go today. 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, so that will be a task that will be given priority, sir.  But in 

terms of mediation, the Council does not see any need for it from its 

perspective of its submission. 

 

SJH:   Yes, I was thinking more in the broader concept of the concerns and 25 

potential misunderstandings there may be around the airport for 

example, around the effect of the designations, the stadium, et cetera. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, I cannot speak to that sir. 

 30 

SJH:   No.  Mr Joll? 

 

MR JOLL:   Sir, the airport will endeavour to have discussions with the 

relevant submitters and it might be that a memorandum of 

understanding can be reached with those parties to narrow the scope of 35 

issues. 

 

SJH:   So do you want our assistance in convening that to formalise the 

process? 

 40 

MR JOLL:   No, sir.  I think we can take that role on ourselves. 

 

SJH:   Okay, what about others designating authorities?  Do any of them have 

any views as to where they think mediation in particular may be of 

assistance? 45 

 



 Page 22 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 09.01.15 

 I think this is a matter that the indication you have all given, that it is 

something that the designating authorities, if there are issues with 

submitters who are going to turn up at the hearing then I think there 

should be some informal discussions between the designating authority 

and the submitter.  Mr Mora? 5 

 

  [12.50 pm] 

 

MR MORA:   Sir, I would be quite keen on, if it was possible to have a 

meeting to clarify, as far as clarification in narrowing of the issues are 10 

concerned prior to it going further. 

 

SJH:   Over all designations, or ones that you are concerned about? 

 

MR MORA:   Well in particular the ones that I am concerned about, but I just 15 

thought it might be useful for everybody to get together in a room and 

see about the outcome of that, sir, whether, what their issues really are. 

 

SJH:   Well the problem with that is it is a roll over. 

 20 

MR MORA:   Okay- - -  

 

SJH:   It leaves us with one exception where there is a concern by those that are 

worried about the airport designation that it amounts to an expansion, 

but all the others are simply a rollover of something that exists 25 

presently. 

 

MR MORA:   I take your point, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Preliminary schedule – sorry, Ms Seaton? 30 

 

MS SEATON:   Thank you, just to add to what Mr Joll was saying, from the 

perspective of the Isaac Trust I think it would be helpful to have some 

discussion with the Airport prior to the hearing, yes. 

 35 

SJH:   But you accept that you can arrange that informally between yourselves? 

 

MS SEATON:   Absolutely, I am just indicating that the Trust is more than 

happy to do that. 

 40 

SJH:   Well I am sure the Airport will be contacting all of the submitters on the 

airport issues to make sure they all took part in that.  Thank you. 

 

 If we can come to a preliminary schedule and work backwards. 

 45 
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 Ms Mehan could you just double check for us, just because we were 

early given an indication around 2 February, but Panel members have 

some problems around the 2nd and 3rd – could you just check that and 

we would be looking to start the hearing on 4 February and working 

back from that? 5 

 

DISCUSSION AMONG PANEL MEMBERS  

 

SJH:   Just looking at it I think there have been a lot of changes because of the 

change of natural hazards, and I think I was probably wrong in saying 10 

we are looking at the 2nd.  It was the week of 16 February, but is there 

any issue, because I imagine this at most would be a two day hearing, 

that we look at the 9th and 10th, and if we spill over, the 12th of 

February? 

 15 

 Because we are going on, straight afterwards, on a very substantive 

hearing with natural hazards, and I want to ensure the Panel and 

everybody else involved has ample time to prepare for that.  Does 

anybody have any issues with the dates 9, 10 and 12 February? 

 20 

 All right, well we will confirm that- - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, I have to admit I have not spoken to my witnesses, 

but the Crown anyway has been operating under the indication, 

unfortunately, of the Panel website, sir, about the 16th. 25 

 

  [12.55 pm] 

 

 So I cannot confirm, sir, the availability on the 9th, 10th or 12th, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   I am afraid this whole process is a moveable feast, as you know- - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I appreciate that, sir. 

 

SJH:   Because of the concerns that everybody, and the difficulties everybody 35 

has faced, and the other issue is the finalisation of the one matter we 

have heard and the ones we are hearing next week, which have to be 

out by 28 February, and I do not want to run that, this hearing into that 

period- - - 

 40 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   For a few days of the week before that, because there is going to be an 

awful lot of work required for that as well. 

 45 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, that is appreciated. 
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SJH:   But you can come back to me, but we will, provisionally schedule 9th, 

10th, 12th – if individual witnesses of any submitters have difficulty, 

and the Council have difficulty, we will accommodate that. 

 5 

 How long do the requiring authorities want to prepare their evidence?  

Silence will mean I will just tell you, which is likely to be shorter than 

you are going to ask for – ten days from today; 19 February?  Sorry, 

no, 19 January? 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, we would not be able to achieve that, sir.  That is 

simply due to the unavailability of witnesses, sir.  Again, this 

unfortunately has been brought on just by the indicative dates that we 

were anticipating having evidence ready by the 30th. 

 15 

SJH:   Sorry. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, if I can suggest a solution, it is how we have worked in the 

previous hearings that we have had to date.  If we are looking at a 

hearing date of 9th, if we work back from that date, perhaps top the 20 

Thursday for rebuttal evidence- - - 

 

SJH:   Well I think the problem is, and before you go on, I do not want to 

interrupt you, but because of the 28 February deadline, we really 

crammed those too late, and I want to give, start giving the Panel an 25 

appropriate amount of reading time, and I think all of us, including 

everyone in the room that was involved, were probably working 16-18 

hour days to get the reading done. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, I appreciate that. 30 

 

SJH:   And that is – a d you had to prepare it as well, I know, but that is a 

concern I have, so I want to give everybody more time, but particularly 

in this case to get reading and that out of the road because we have got, 

as you know, a very major task we have to complete by 28 February. 35 

 

MS SCOTT:   Absolutely, sir, taking it into mind, this is just a suggestion.  If 

the rebuttal was filed perhaps the Wednesday before the hearing that 

gives an extra couple of days before the hearing starts or sometime in 

the middle of the week before the hearing starts. 40 

 

SJH:   Well, what I was looking for, because the Crown have accepted 

19 January for the, well none of the other designating authorities have 

said no- - - 

 45 

MS DAWSON:   No, he said he could not- - - 
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MS SCOTT:   I thought you said you could not? – sorry. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Couldn’t, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Why? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, it is simply an operation of the Crown was keeping 

an eye, sir, on the Panel’s website, sir, and it did- - - 

 10 

SJH:   I know that, but I am asking, what is the reason?  What is the reason you 

cannot bring it forward? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Because we do not have the witnesses, sir, to be able to 

comply by – all I can do, sir, is see what I can do, but at the moment 15 

the anticipation, sir, was that our witnesses would be providing 

evidence by the 30th – that was the timetable that we had arranged with 

our witnesses, sir, based on the, at the time, the understanding that the 

hearing would commence around about the 16th, sir. 

 20 

SJH:   If we extend you to the 30th, it puts enormous pressure on everybody 

else, on the submitters, and it seems to me that even if we had had the 

hearing date of the 16th, you have simply, it seems to be assuming that 

we would cram in the evidence late as we did for strategic directions. 

 25 

  [1.00 pm] 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Well, sir, if it was the 16th what would happen is that 

the proponents would, in other words, the requiring authorities, would 

provide evidence on the 30th, other parties on the 6th, which is the 30 

following week.  It is similar to the strategic directions exchange, sir. 

 

SJH:   Well, that is the very point, the strategic directions exchanges were done 

to enable everybody to meet the 28th February deadline.  I want to give 

the Panel more reading time, even though there is less evidence here, 35 

than we had in strategic directions. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Whoever drafted the order in Council, and I do not know who was 40 

responsible for it, simply chose to ignore Christmas holidays and all 

sorts of things.   

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 45 
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SJH:   So, Mr Mora is agreeing down the back, because it is inconvenienced 

not only the Panel and the professionals involved, but the professionals 

involved are getting paid for it, the lay submitters are taking their own 

time and their own holidays for this.  Can we say 23 January, is that a 

week day? 5 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, could I make a slightly alternative suggestion, sir, 

just looking at the calendar, and again I have not spoken to my 

witnesses, sir, but if you provide the witnesses with the weekend, sir, 

then there could be an exchange by the proponents on the 26th January, 10 

other parties by 2nd February and then rebuttal by the 5th. 

 

SJH:   So you are giving them seven days and you are got from today to 

26th January? 

 15 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Seven days to respond, sir, but they can commence 

preparing evidence now.  As you have noted, sir, this is a rollover. 

 

SJH:   So 23 January, other submitters by 30 January, rebuttal 4th February.  I 

do not think we need to make orders around legal submissions at this 20 

stage, but what I would indicate, that we will adopt the previous 

practice, a brief opening, but a more fulsome closing, but I would think 

the length of this hearing is such that we would be expecting counsel to 

go immediately into closing submission at the end of evidence. 

 25 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   As your Honour pleases.   30 

 

SJH:   I am not your Honour anymore.  Judge Hassan still is, but I am not. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 35 

SJH:   Well, actually that is wrong, I am, but that is another story all together. 

 

 Does anybody else have any queries about this procedure and the filing 

of evidence? To the lay submitters, can I say the friend of the submitter 

is available to assist you in this process.  I think Dr Cowie is currently, 40 

this week, on holiday, but the secretariat has his phone number and he 

would be back in time to assist you with any of the issues you may 

have, both around the hearing, the preparation of your submission, the 

type of evidence you should be looking to call and such matters.  So 

that resource is available to you.   45 
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 What I would do is, if you want to utilise it, is just check with the 

secretariat before you leave today to find out when Dr Cowie is back, 

or if you would like him or us to make arrangements for him to contact 

you.   

 5 

 Do the lay submitters have any other queries?  Yes? 

 

MR……….:   Yes, sir, just about cross-examination of other parties witnesses.  

Are we able to do that? 

 10 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR ……….:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   That is another matter that we are going to have to deal with in just a 15 

moment because you have to apply, the Order in Council requires that 

you need to apply for leave to cross-examine.  I am not quite sure why, 

because I think that right should be there anyway, and we have not 

declined any leave at the moment.  I mean it may be to cover some 

exceptional circumstances. 20 

 

MR ……….:   So my question there, sir, is when does that submission or when 

does the application have to be made to apply for that leave? 

 

SJH:   Generally we have made it, I think, if I am correct, the same day as the 25 

filing of the rebuttal evidence, so 4th February. 

 

MR ……….:   Thank you very much. 

 

SJH:   Is that an acceptable date for cross-examination leave everybody? 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 35 

SJH:   Lay submitters, anything further? Represented submitters, is there 

anything? 

 

  [1.05 pm] 

 40 

MS SCOTT:  Sir, just in response to your question earlier about the central city 

designations; one more has been identified, and it is designation S1, it 

is one of Spark’s designations, it is the Christchurch Exchange.  We 

understand that is within the central city and that is the only one we 

have picked up. 45 
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SJH:   In addition to the ones that have been mentioned? 

 

MS SCOTT:   That has already been mentioned. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you for that. 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   And just, I just wanted to raise just for the benefit of submitters, 

and just to remind that on the Council’s proposed district plan website, 

the rollover notices are on that website – they are under the Section 32 

tab, so if they are looking for that information it is there, and also on 10 

that, in the same section, there is a table and it contains a summary of 

the requirements. 

 

 So it sets out where there is some minor differences between the roll 

over notice and what was notified, and that is because in some 15 

situations the notice was not quite adequate, or it had some kind of 

issues with it, and so that is just for clarity just to explain that. 

 

 That is just for the benefit of submitters, sir. 

 20 

SJH:   Well can I suggest that lay submitters in particular, that you check out 

that part of the Council’s website, which will be of assistance. 

 

 All right, thank you, we will adjourn. 

 25 
MATTER ADJOURNED AT 1.06 PM ACCORDINGLY 


